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Jury, are satisfied the information was false, 
then you must hold it malicious.
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Verdict,— “ Find upon the first issue that 
the pursuer did not get due warning in pro­
per time to quit the defender’s service, and 
upon that issue find the pursuer entitled to 
L .95 of damages. Upon the second issue find # 
for the pursuer, and find L. 200 damages due 
to the said pursuer, and the Jury assess said 
sums accordingly.”

Jeffrey and Cockbum, for the Pursuer.
«

Clerk, Moncreiff', and J. A . Murt'ay, for the Defender. 
(Agents, A .  S m i th , w. s. and J. Mowbray, vr. s.) •
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Damages for 
assault and 
battery.

« (■

P R E S E N T ,

LORDS C H I E F  COM M ISSIONER AND PITM ILLY .

H all alias Stewart v. Otto.

T h i s  was an action of damages b y  a married 
woman for assault and battery.

4 % * 

D e f e n c e .— A  denial of the facts alleged.

ISSUE.

“ Whether, on the 21st January 1817, or

*
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“ about that time, the defender did assault, 
“ strike, or beat the pursuer, Janet Hall, alias 
“ Stewart, to her great harm and injury, in 
“ the house o f the said defender at Path- 
“ head ?”

Hall
<v.

Otto*

i

“ Damages laid in the summons at L> 200.”

The defender, a surgeon at Pathhead, had 
borrowed a small sum of money from the pur­
suer’s husband, a farmer in the neighbourhood. 
On the day mentioned in the issue, she sent a 
servant for payment. The defender having 
given his own discharged account in part pay­
ment, the pursuer seemed to be a good deal ir­
ritated, and went in the evening to his house. 
He left some friends who had dined with him
to speak to her, and a noise was soon after 
heard from the defender’s consultation room, 
where it was alleged he committed the as­
sault.

On her return home a surgeon was called, 
but was unable to attend. A  neighbouring 
farmer took some blood from her, which was 
approved of by the surgeon who saw her a day 
or two after.

A  witness for the pursuer was asked by her

In an action of 
damages for 
assault and bat­
tery, it is not 
competent to 
prove what the 
pursuer said of 
her feelings at 
the time of the 
assault libelled.

« i
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Hall
•v.

Otto.

♦

counsel, whether she complained of pain from 
bruises on her body ?

L ord Chief Commissioner.— You may de- 
sire the witness to state what he observed, and 
whether she showed him any bruises, but what 
she said of her feelings is not evidence. As 
this is a circumstantial case, I am extremely 
anxious not to allow the defect of proof to be 
supplied by declarations of the party.

Another witness having stated, that the pur*
suer called for assistance, was then asked what

«

she said at the time.
L ord Chief Commissioner.— Was the de^

«

fender present ? I f  not, the question is incom- 
petent.

The witness, on his cross-examination, was 
asked whether the pursuer was quarrelsome ?

Jeffrey,— Her character is not in issue. We 
are not in an inquiry whether she was habite 
and repute quarrelsome.

L ord Chief Commissioner.— This ques­
tion appeal’s to me incompetent.

Jeffreyi in opening the case; said,— As no 
person was present, this case must depend on 
circumstantial evidence, but that is often better 
than direct. We shall prove- that the pursuer

CASES TRIED IN July U ,

i
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went into the defender’s room without having 
any marks of violence on her person, and that 
when she left it, her head-dress was disordered, 
and her face cut, bruised, and bleeding* The 
defender alleges, that she assaulted him and his 
wife, but this is incredible, and cannot bar the 
claim of damages. I f  two men are in a room, 
and the weaker comes out much hurt, while 
the other suffers no injury, the presumption 
is very strong that the other committed the 
assault, but in the present case it is irre­
sistible.

The L.200 claimed is not, as is usual, a ran­
dom sum, but was fixed after consultation.

Coclcburn stated,— There is no ground for 
subjecting the defender in damages, whatever 
suspicions the pursuer may have raised against 
him. The pursuer is a respectable man, and 
would on no account resist this action except 
to clear his character from such an imputation. 
There is no proof of the existence of the as­
sault, but even if this were doubtful, the de-

*  •k

fender is entitled to the benefit of the doubt. 
If she remained in his house after he ordered 
her out, he was entitled to push her out, and 
in her passion she may have run against the 
door or hurt herself with her umbrella.

H all
•v.

Otto.

t
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Hall
•v.

Otto.

I f  damages are due, they must be very 
small; she has only proved 10s. 6d., and the 
situation of the defender ‘ can make no differ­
ence in the sum to be given ; damages being 
given as reparation, not as punishment.

L ord Chief Commissioner.— This is a very 
short case, and it is the first instance of an as­
sault not resting on positive ocular proof, but 
entirely on facts and circumstances, that has 
fallen within the scope of my experience in a 
practice of thirty-five years. You must, how­
ever, take these facts and circumstances into 
consideration, but must not give damages on 
mere suspicion ; you must in your consciences 
be satisfied that the defender assaulted and beat 
the pursuer.
• The counsel on the one side rest on the im­

probability o f a woman assaulting a man, and 
on her appearance when she left the room, not 
having gone into it with any marks of violence 
on her person. On the other, they rest on the 
evidence of the temper in which she was when 
she came to the house. You must weigh these 
and the other circumstances dispassionately, 
and though counsel say the sum claimed in 
the summons was inserted after consultation, 
I am persuaded if  you think damages due,

s
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you will limit tlie sum to a very moderate 
amount.

Verdict for the pursuer, damages L. 35.

Hall
•v.

Otto.

Jeffrey and Borthwick, for the Pursuer. 
Cockbum and Ivory, for the Defender.

(Agents, Jas. Grcig, w. s. and Jas. Malcolm.)
I
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APPENDIX,
CONTAINING .

THE CONDESCENDENCE, ANSWERS, AND ISSUES, IN

THE FOLLOWING CASES.
0

No. I.

R aeburn v . Kedsue.

C ondescendence,p .  451.— A nswers, p .  453.— I ssue, p- 457.

N o. II.

Paul v . O ld Shipping Company.

C ondescendence, p .  457.— A nsw ers, p ,  46l .— I ssue, p .  463.

N o. III.

'Manuel v , Fraser.

C ondescendence for M an u el , p. 464.— A nsw ers for F raser, 
p % 468.— Condescendence for F raser , p .  471.— A nsw ers

M anu el , p .  473.— I ssue, p. 482.
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APPENDIX.
• I !
I

No. I.
. |

4

C O N D E S C E N D E N C E  for R aeburn and O thers.

T. he suspenders condescend and say,-~
. ls£, That M r Kedslie, in the beginning of summer 

1814, erected, in the village of Stockbridge, a certain 
building, containing a steam engine of great power, viz. 
18 horses’ power, and which consumes, while going, an 
average quantity of two tons of coals per day.

2d , T h at the sm oke w hich issues from  this engine, and 
the sulphurous gases which exale from it, are offensive 
and injurious to the health o f  the neighbourhood : T h at
those offensive vapours fill the houses w hich lie in the di­
rection to which the wind blow s, w hile the engine is go ­
ing, and destroy the vegetables in the gardens, and this to  
a distance o f  many hundred yards from the en g in e: T h a t  
the furniture in the houses is blackened and soiled by the 
sm oke, the vegetables acquire a bitter taste, and the 
clothes and linen o f  the fam ilies in the neighbourhood are 
prevented from being dried or bleached : T h at, in som e
houses, even at the distance o f  many hundred yards, the 
inhabitants have been prevented from opening their win­
dow s on account o f the sm oke o f  the engine, and have 
found it im possib le to sit with com fort in the apartments 
on that side o f  their houses which is next to the engine, 
w h ile  the sm oke issues in that direction.

3 d9 T h at the discom fort occasioned by the sm oke is so 
great as to have prevented the feuing o f the ground in the



I

>

. neighbourhood which had been advertised for building- 
ground.

4th, That many of the finest streets, squares, and cres­
cents of the' New Town, according to the plan, part of 
which has been executed, lie exposed to the full influence 
of this nuisance: That King Street and Howe Street
are occasionally annoyed with the smoke, as the wind 
happens to blow in the direction towards those streets.

5th, That a great part of the ground in the neighbour* 
hood of this engine lias, to a great extent and value, for 
several years, been laid out and advertised for building 
ground for dwelling-houses, and it is chiefly of value in 
that view; but the nuisance of this engine has much re­
duced the value of the ground in that situation.

I n  respect w h e re o f \ fyc.

(Signed) G eorge J os. B ell .

On revising the condescendence and answers, in obedi­
ence to the above interlocutor, the suspenders further 
aver,—

)st, That there is no apparatus for consuming the 
smoke; that no such apparatus is a sufficient security 
against the nuisance; and that, accordingly, the thick 
and offensive vapour of which the pursuers complain, 
has proved an annoyance to the neighbourhood at all 
times, when the present occupiers have had occasion to 
use the engine, as well as while it remained in the occupa­
tion of Mr Kedslie.

2d, The ovens of the village of Stockbridge are not of­
fensive, nor have the neighbourhood been in the least an­
noyed with smoke, when the engine in question was not 
going.

3d, Whatever in theory a man of science may report, 
the fact of the nuisance and offensive smoke can be 
established only by a proof at large.

In respect whereof, fyc.
G eorge  J os. Beix .

452 APPENDIX.
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ANSW ERS for Saunders and Others, Purchasers
from K edslie.

i

T here  is a scarcity of mills in the neighbourhood of 
.Edinburgh, for the purpose of grinding wheat and other 
grain to supply the consumption of the city. Every fall 
of water in the neighbourhood has long been occupied, 
so that it has been found impracticable to extend the ma­
nufacture of this part of the necessaries of life, by erect­
ing additional water mills. Moreover, the Water of Leith, 
on which the dour mills are erected, although it might 
still prove sufficient in rainy seasons, is nevertheless ex­
tremely apt to become inefficient for the movement of 
machinery, not only in consequence of frosts in winter, 
but also by drought in summer and autumn. This has 
very often happened of late years, so as to render it neces­
sary to obtain, at a great expence, corn to be grouud for 
the consumption of the city, at Haddington, Dalkeith, 
Musselburgh, and other places, and in particular at Burnt­
island, where there is a steam-engine erected for grinding 
wheat.

2 . Various plans have at different times been suggested 
to remedy the above inconvenience, which is a growing 
evil, and at one time a party of bakers obtained a feu of 
some ground, w'ith the view of erecting a mill for grind­
ing wheat, the machinery to be moved by a steam-engine.

The scheme was delayed, and ultimately deserted, from 
accidental causes. In the mean time, Andrew Kedslie, 
the author of the respondents, who was then proprietor 
of Stockbridge Mills, resolved to erect a steam engine 
to work his machinery at those times when the power de­
rived from the Water of Leith should fall, in consequence 
of frost or drought.

3. The Stockbridge Mills are of ancient constitution. 
They have been constantly employed in grinding wheat, 
and have been employed for many years to greater extent 
than any other mills within twenty miles of Edinburgh,
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excepting only the flour-mills belonging to the incorpora­
tion of bakers. The steam-engine which Mr Kedslie con­
structed was attached to these mills, to the effect only 
which has been already mentioned, of assisting the water 
power when deficient, and not for the purpose of giving 
motion to any new mill distinct from the old mills. The 
respondents purchased these mills and machinery for 
their own accommodation as tradesmen, and they only 
mean to use the steam-engine as Mr Kedslie did. It 
is cheaper to use the water power thau the steam-en­
gine ; accordingly, when the water does not fail from 
drought or frost, the engine is not used.

4 . The steam-engine in question is of the newest and 
best construction, upon the principle contrived by Watt. 
Morever, it is furnished with an apparatus for burning its 
own smoke. It is what is denominated by artists a seven­
teen horse power. The smoke that proceeds from it is 
not greater than that which proceeds from an ordinary 
baker’s oven ; it does not consume more than a ton of 
coals in twelve successive hours.

5 . The suspender, Mr Raeburn, has lately erected an 
oven in the neighbourhood of the mills, the smoke of 
which is equal to that which proceeds from the en­
gine. There is another oven at Stockbridge, and the 
smoke of the two greatly exceeds the smoke given out 
by the steam-engine when it is employed.

Steam-engines, especially those of an improved con­
struction, similar to that in question, are no where regard­
ed as a nuisance. Numbers of them exist in Glasgow, 
Manchester, and London. Moreover, there are several 
steam-engines in Edinburgh at the present moment. One 
is employed by Mr Marshall, at Portobelio, amidst hand- 
some houses upon ground destined for feus. There is also 
a steam-engine at Silvermills. There is nothing in the 
particular situation of the steam-engine in question, which 
cun render it a nuisance to the particular neighbourhood in 
which it is placed, and it is there used for the purpose of 
supplying one of the necessaries of life to the inhabitants 
of the city. Having made these statements, the respou-
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dents shall take the liberty to make the following remarks 
in answer to the averments in the condescendence.

1 . Herioi’s Hospital is no party to the process. The 
averment here made is therefore irrelevant, and it is un­
supported by evidence.

2 . Admitted that a steam-engine has been erected, but 
it is only a seventeen horse power. It may consume 
two tons of coal in twenty-four working hours, but it only 
consumes about half that quantity in a working-day ot 
twelve hours.

3 . When Mr Redslie first set the engine a-going, he 
and his servants did not understand how to manage it, and 
the consequence was, that it emitted a considerable quan­
tity of smoke, which was just so much fuel wasted. But 
a person acquainted with the management of such engines 
was afterwards employed. It was then found that the 
engine produced no more smoke than a baker’s oven, as 
already mentioned. Indeed, except for a single minute or 
two when it is fed with fresh coals, it produces no more 
smoke than a common kitchen fire. The respondents, 
therefore, deny, generally, the statements contained in this 
article of the condescendence. The engine does not give 
out nearly so much smoke as a common smithy, some of 
which exist in the very heart of the New Town of Edin­
burgh.

4 . The steam-engine in question has not prevented the 
feuing of the neighbouring grounds. It is well known, 
that for some time past, the feuing of ground for new 
buildings has every where been at a stand, and it cannot 
appear surprising that this dulness in that branch of trade 
should have reached Stockbridge.

5. The smoke of the engine cannot affect the streets, 
squares, and crescents meant to be constructed m the New 
Town. That notion was broached in the*discussion rela­
tive to the steam-engine at Silvermills, but was justly dis­
regarded.

6 . The smoke issuing from the steam-engine in ques­
tion could not affect the value of the neighbouring ground. 
Indeed, Mr Raeburn’s oven, as already noticed, produces
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as much smoke as the steam-engine. It is remarkable, 
that nobody in Stockbridge complains of the steam- 
engine, although there are more than a score of washer­
women who gain their bread in the village by that occu­
pation, not one of whom has either left the village or ut­
tered a single complaint against the steam-engine.

Before concluding, it may be proper to remark, that a 
proof at large on such a subject as this, is liable to be ex-' 
tended to an enormous length. The respondents, there­
fore, beg leave to suggest the propriety of endeavouring 
to bring the dispute to a close, by directing an inspection 
of the steam-engine to be made by a man of science, for 
instance, by Professor Leslie of the University of Edin­
burgh, and a report to be returned on the points in dis­
pute, concerning its tendency to prove a nuisance to the 
neighbourhood.

• In respect whereof, fyc.
Ro. F orsyth .

9

In addition to the above answers, the defenders.conde­
scend and say,—

1 . The ovens, smith shops, yarn-boiling, and other ma­
nufactures in Slockbridge and its neighbourhood, some of 
them belonging to the suspender, Mr Raeburn himself, 
and others of them to that gentleman’s own brother, emit 
as much smoke as the steam-engine in question, and the 
suspenders probably mistake the one smoke for the other.

2 . The feu-duty of the ground lying within a few yards 
of the steam-engine, has been fixed within these few days 
at the very high rate of os. per foot in front.

3 . The chargers humbly apprehend that it would be 
expedient for your Lordships to take a report from Pro­
fessor Leslie, which would be of more consequence than 
the examination of ignorant people. And,

Lastly, The respondents may remind your Lordships 
that there are a number of material averments made by 
them in their answers, not met in the additional statement 
made by the suspenders.

In respect whereof, fyc»
Ro. F orsyth ,
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I S S U E .
9

I n obedience to the order of Lord Pitmilly, bearing 
date the iGth day of December 1815, I report, that the 
following Issue is calculated to try the question betwixt
the parties, viz. ,

1

Whether Mr Kedslie, the charger, did, in the course of 
the year 1814, in the village of Stockbridge, erect a 

- building containing a steam-engine, the smoke or exha- 
, lations from which are or may be injurious to the 

health, or comforts, or property of the possessors of the 
houses and gardens upon the property of the suspenders 
in the neighbourhood of the said steam-engine, and are 
or may be likewise injurious to the said property of the 

, suspenders, and in what respect, and to what extent ?

A nd I further report, at the instance o f  the charger, that 
the fo llow in g  issue is calculated to try the hypothetical 
poin t upon w hich he insists in the answers to  the conde- 
scen d en ce:—

W hether, according to the averment o f  the charger, ma­
chinery or other m eans can be applied , which w ill ren­
der the sm oke and exhalations from the said steam - 
engine innoxious, and what these means are ?

(S igned) W illiam  C lekk,
1 st  C lerk  o f  J u r y  C o u r t.

No. II.

C O N D E S C E N D E N C E  for J ohn Paul.

U pon hearing parties, the Lord Ordinary was pleased, 
of this date, (June 23, 1815,) to pronounce the following 
interlocutor: < Having heard parties* procurators, before
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* answ er, A p p oin ts the pursuer to g ive in a specia l con-
* descendence o f  the facts and circum stances he avers and 
‘ offers to  prove in support o f  his a c t io n ; said coude- 
‘ scen d en ce-to  be given in w ithin eigh t d ays/

In  ob ed ien ce  to the above interlocutor, the pursuer 
condescends and says,

1 . That, on the 15th and 1 6 th of April 1814, the pursuer, 
who is a considerable dealer in flax-seed, wrote to Mesrss 
Robert and John Hewetson, merchants in London, re­
questing them to purchase for him 1 0 0  barrels of Riga 
sowing flax-seed, provided they could get the same for­
warded from London to Leith by a smack immediately, 
or at furthest by Thursday the 2 1 st of that month, and

'w ith  earnest injunctions to lo se  not a m om ent in sh ipp ing  
and d ispatching the seed.

2 . That, in consequence of this communication, Messrs 
Hewetson made inquiry at the wharf on the river Thames* 
occupied by the defenders/ the Old Shipping Company, 
and were informed by the people employed by them, that 
their smack Lord Melville was the first vessel which 
had room, and that she was to be dispatched for Leith on 
Friday th  ̂ 2 yth April 1814.

3. That, although this was later than the pursuer had 
required, yet, on the faith of the day of sailing being 
kept, Messrs Hewetson, finding they could implement 
the pursuer’s order, immediately purchased 1 0 0  barrels 
of Riga sowing flax-seed, which they delivered, on the 
27lh April 1814, to the manager of the Old Shipping 
Company, to be dispatched to Leith, on Friday the 2 Qth 
April 1814.

4 .  T h a t the m anager received the said seed , and put 
the sam e on board the sm ack Lord M elv ille .

5 . T h at, previous to the delivery o f  the seed, the sm ack  
L ord  M elv ille  had been seized by the custom house offi­
cers, on accou n t o f  having contraband goods on board, 
and was actually  under seizure at the tim e the seeds w ere  
received and sh ipped  on board o f  her.

6 .. That neither the manager, nor any of the people 
employed by the defenders, gave any intimation to
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Messrs Hewetson, that the Lord Melville was under 
seizure.

7. That Messrs Hewetson shipped the seeds on the 
express faith and understanding that the Lord Melville ' 
was to sail on Friday the 2 9 th April 1814, as had been 
held out by the defenders and their servants to ihe public.

8 . That if Messrs Hewetson had been iuformed that 
the Lord Melville was under seizure at the time, or that 
there was any thing to prevent her sailing on Friday the 
2 9 th April 1814, they would not, under the order they 
had received, have allowed the seed to be put on board of 
her.

9 » That the manager for the defenders, finding he 
could not get the seizure of the Lord Melville taken off, 
sent other goods, then in his custody, in order to be sent 
to Leith, by another of the company’s smacks, called the 
Queen Charlotte, * and dispatched her from London to 
Leith, on Saturday the 30th April, or Sunday 1 st May 
1814- But, instead of sending the pursuer’s seeds by the 
Queen Charlotte, he allowed the same to lie for a consi­
derable time, along with the contraband goods on board 
of the Lord Melville, then under seizure.

1 0 . That all the smacks which sailed from London on 
Thursday the 28th April 1814, and even those which 
sailed on Saturday the 30th April, and Sunday the 1st 
May, (and among others the Queen Charlotte,) arrived at 
Leith on the 3d, 4th, and 5th of May J 814, after a pas-

• sage o f from four to six days. That if the Lord Melville 
had sailed at the time appointed, the seeds would have ar­
rived at Leith on the 3d May, in good time for the mar­
ket, when seed was exceedingly scarce, and high priced4 
and that, if the seeds had been forwaided by the Queen 
Charlotte, they would have arrived at Leith on the 5 th or 
6 th May 1814.

1 1 . That the Lord Melville, with the pursuer’s seeds 
on board, did not sail from London until about the 6 th 
of May 1814, and that she arrived in Leith harbour on 
the 1 5 th May 3814, being twelve days later than she 
would have done had she sailed at the time appointed;

V

#

\



4 6 0 A P PE N D IX .
«

and as the seed market was over when she arrived, the 
pursuer’s seed was not worth one half the price it would 
have brought ten days before.

1 2 . That, as the pursuer could obtain no accounts of 
the Lord Melville with his seed, (hough daily assured by 
the manager in Leith that she would arrive immediately, 
he wrote to Messrs Hewetson, requesting them to make 
inquiry after the ship.

13. That Messrs Hewetson, accordingly, on the 13th 
May 1814, saw Mr Lawrie, the manager for the defend­
ers, in London, and having inquired at him after the ves­
sel, Messrs Hewetson were informed by Mr Lawrie, that 
the Lord Melville had sailed from London on the 2 9 th of 
April 1814, which information was not true, as the Lord 
Melville had not sailed from London till about the 6 th of 
May 1814

14. That Messrs Hewetson having informed the pur­
suer of the purchase of the above 1 0 0  barrels of Riga 
sowing flax-seed, the pursuer, upon the 6 th May 1814, 
sold the said 1 0 0  barrels of seed to Mr John Baillie, 
merchant in Audrie, at the price of L.5 per barrel, 
amounting to L.500, deliverable in Leith on or before 
the 9 th M ay; but, ui consequence of the non-avrival of 
the seed, the pursuer could not deliver it, and Mr Baillie 
thereupon threw' up the sale.

15. That upon the arrival of the Lord Melville, the 
defender, Mr Black, as manager of the Oid Shipping 
Company, accompanied by some of the directors, called 
upon the pursuer, and requested him to receive the seed. 
That the pursuer refused to do so, as he could only then 
sell the seed at a very great doss, which he stated to them 
arose from their fault, and which they w’ere liable for. 
And that at last it was agreed upon, that as the Dundee 
seed market is a little later than Leith, the 1 0 0  barrels in 
question should be consigned to Mr Patrick Andeison, 
banker in Dundee, in order to be disposed of, for behoof 
of ail concerned ; and that afterwards a submission should 
be entered into between the parties, as to whom the loss 
should fall on j which agreement was reduced into writ-
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mg, by missives between' the parties, produced in pro­
cess.

1 6 - That the seed was, in terms of these missive, im­
mediately forwarded to Mr Anderson, who disposed of it, 
but owing to the then late season, it only yielded L. 227, 
9 s. 6 d. of free proceeds.

17. That, therefore, a loss of no less than L. 2 7 2 , 1 0 s. 
6 d. arose betw een the price at which the seed was sold by 
the pursuer to Mr Baillie, and that at which it was after­
wards disposed of by Mr Anderson.

18. That sovviug flax-seed is an extremely perishable 
article, and during the sowing season is worth in value 
from two to three times more than it is after the sowing 
season is over.

In respect whereof, fyc,
G eorge Jo s . B ell,

+  • • *

t
\

ANSW ERS for J ohn B lack.

T here  is a very singular and suspicious discrepancy be­
tween the allegation in this article and the aveiment in the 
first page of the summons. In his summons, the pursuer 
stated that he had commissioned this flax-seed by a letter 
dated on 2 2 d April 1814 ; whereas he now affects to say, 
that the commission was given on the J5 th and 1 6 th April, 
to be dispatched by the 2 1 st.

The respondents aver, that the first communication 
which they had from Mr Hewetson respecting this flax­
seed, was by a verbal application on the Corn Exchange 
on Monday the 25th of April; and all that the manager 
then said was, that the first vessel on his list to sail was 
the “ Lord Melville,” (which was truly the case,) and that 
he expected she w'ould sail on the 29th April. But the 
vessel was not publicly advertised for that day. On the 
contrary, the only hand bill circulated respecting her made 
her day of sailing the 24th.

Ans. to Art. 3.— The respondents deny that the sailing 
of the vessel positively on the day expected was made a 
condition of the shipment.

4.—Admitted.
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5 . and 6 .— It is denied that the Lord Melville was ever 
under seizure by the Customhouse officers for contraband 
goods.' AH that happened, was, that 2 0  puncheons of 
whisky, brought by the vessel to London, could not be 
landed till the duties were paid ; and as this whisky had 
been shipped by Mr Haig, the respondents’ manager had 
every reason to’ believe that they would be settled on or 
before the 2 9 th April.

7 . — The respondents here beg to refer to their answer 
to the third article.

8 . -—This is a matter of inference, which will depend on 
the facts to be afterwards ascertained.

Q.— The greater part of the statement iu this article is 
erroneous. The loading of the Lord Melville was com­
plete on the 28th A pril; and it is denied that any articles, 
intended to be sent by the Lord Melville, were shipped in 
the Queen Charlotte, in respect of any detention of the 
former vessel.

JO.—*In this article also, the pursuer has fallen into a 
total mistake. The Queen Charlotte did not sail from 
London till the third May, and it was actually the 14th of 
May before she arrived at Leith.

1 1 . — The Lord Melville certainly did not sail from 
London till the 6 th of M ay; but the respondents know 
nothing of the remaining part of the statement in this 
article.

1 2 . — The statement in this article does not seem to be 
material.

13. — As to the statement in this article, either the pur­
suer or Messrs Hewetson must have fallen into an egre­
gious mistake, and totally misunderstood the respondents’ 
manager, Mr Lawrie. H e has no such personal interest 
in this matter, as to make it credible that he or any man 
would advance a gross falsehood to deceive an employer; 
and still less a falsehood that admitted of immediate de­
tection.

14. — The respondents can know nothing of the acctu 
racy of the pursuer’s statement on this article. If the pro­
cess goes forward, therefore, the pursuer’s allegations must

«
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be proved, and the respondents will be allowed a conjunct 
probation.

15, 1 6 , 17, awl 18.—'The last observation applies to 
these articles also.

While the defender has made these answers on the fa c t , 
he humbly begs .leave to enter his protest against the re/e- 
•vancy of the pursuer’s averments in point of law. In par- * 
ticular, he denies that even when a vessel is advertised to 
sail against a specific day, that merchants understand that 
this imposes a peremptory obligation on the owner of a 
general ship to dispatch the vessel against that day. But, 
on the contrary, if a shipper deems it indispensably neces­
sary-for his interest, that his goods should be dispatched 
against a particular day, aud that he is to be entitled to 
damages for the failure then to dispatch the vessel, he is 
bound to make the period of dispatch a condition of the 
shipment, and thus to put the owners on their guard of the 
hazard which they run in taking his goods.

In respect whereof fyc.
J ohn C uningham e .
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ISSUE.
•

I n obedience to the interlocutor of Lord Alloway, of 
the 2 0 th December 1815,1 report that the following Issue 
is calculated to try the question between the parties:
Whether, on or about the 27th day of April 1814, certain 

goods, viz. one hundred barrels of flax seed, were ship-* 
ped on board a certain vessel belonging to the defend­
ers, called the Lord Melville, then lying in the port of 
London, taking in goods on freight for the port of 
Leith ? and,

Whether, at the time of leceiving said flax-seed on board, 
or at some time befoie, the defenders, by themselves, 
or others acting in their name and by their authority, 
dio undertake to the shipper or shippers of the said 

• flax-seed, that the said vessel should set sail from the
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said port o f  L ondon , w ith  the said flax-seed on  board, 
on or before the 29th  day o f  A p ril 1814 ? and.

W hether, as the said vessel did not sari on the voyage  
aforesaid, on the day last aforesaid, the pursuer has 
thereby suffered loss and dam age, by losing  the oppor­
tunity o f  d isposing o f  the aforesaid flax-seed to the b est  
a d van tage; for w hich  loss and dam age the defenders 
are liab le?

(S ign ed ) ' W illiam  C lerk ,
1st Cleric o f Jury Court.

No. III.

C O N D E S C E N D E N C E  for J ames M a n u el . ».
%

1. J ohn M a n u e l , m erchant in E dinburgh, the pur­
suer’s brother, obtained a cash credit several years ago  
from  S ir W illiam  F orb es and C om pany for L . 250. 
Jam es M an u el, 'senior, the pursuer’s father, and J a m es  
B a illie  o f  F a lah ill, becam e cautioners in the bond, a lon g  
w ith  Joh n  M an u el. A b o u t the end o f  the year 1 8 0 6 , 
J o h n  M anuel failed in his business, and the tw o cau­
tioners w ere ob liged  each o f  them  to pay one h a lf o f  the  
sum  drawn ou t o f  th e  cash accoun t. B u t the pursuer, 
though he had no concern w ith the original debt, agreed  
to  jo in  his father in granting three b ills to M r B a illie  for  
his relief. M r  B a illie  granted an acknow ledgm ent to the  
pursuer’s father in the fo llow in g  term s : “  In con seq u en ce . 
o f  receiving three b ills this day, (S e p t . 2 6 , 1807 ,) signed  * 
by you  and your son Jam es, payable at six, tw elve , and  
eighteen  m onths, for L . 2 0  S terlin g  each , I accept o f  them  
as fu ll paym ent o f  your part o f  the cash account for w hich  
you  and I  w ere bound to  S ir W illiam  Forbes and C o m ­
pany, E dinburgh, on  account o f  your son, J oh n  M an u el, 
and for which you shall have my discharge upon a proper 
stamp f  T w o  o f  the b ills  here m entioned were regularly

i
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paid when they fell due ; and the m oney was ready to pay 
the third, when the pursuer was advised by the defender, 
M r Fraser, that he ought not to pay this third bill till M r  
B a illie  granted the stipulated discharge upon stam ped  
paper.

T h e  pursuer, know ing very little o f  business, was en­
tirely guided by the advice o f  the defender, w ho, it seem s, 
had it in view to present a bill o f suspension, upon the 
ground that no proper discharge had been granted. A t  
the sam e tim e, the defender took m oney from the pursuer 
for paym ent o f  the b ill, and granted an acknow ledgm ent 
for it to the pursuer in the fo llow ing term s: < I acknow -
“  ledge that you have this day (M ay 1, 1809) put into 
“ my hands the sum o f L .20  Sterling, to be consigned in 
“ a suspension at your and your fathers instance, 
“ against James Baillie o f Falahill”. T h e  pursuer never 
had any account with the defender whatever, excep t the 
account in relation to the business with B aillie .

2 . I t  is proper to m ention, that ultim ate diligence had 
been raised by M r B aillie  upon the third b i l l ; and it ap­
pears that the defender actually presented a bill o f sus­
pension, founded upon the ground above-m entioned, that 
M r B aillie  could not demand payment until he granted a  
regular discharge. M r B aillie , w ho was in the army, 
being about to* leave this country to jo in  his regim ent, was 
either on that account glad to yield to the defender's de­
m and, or he had considered the reasons o f  suspension to  
be w ell-founded. A ccordingly, he accepted from the de­
fender o f  L .1 0 , 7s« 8d. in full o f the L .2 0  b ill, afte»- de­
ducting the expences o f  the su sp en sion ; and the matter 
being thus settled, he granted to the pursuer a full as­
signm ent o f  the debt, and diligence raised upon it. H e ,  
at the sam e tim e, delivered up to the defender, as the 
pursuers agent, the L .2 0  b ill, with the horning and cap­
tion which had been raised upon i t ; after w hicn, he went 
abroad to jo in  his regim ent. T h e  diligence being thus 
delivered up to the defender, then the p u r s u e s  agent, as 
extinguished and retired docum ents, upon the debt being  
jiaid, it  could not be used by the defender against the pur?

6g
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suer in any shape, or to any effect, either in the name of 
Mr JBaillie, the creditor, or in the defender’s own name.

3. Matters remained in this state till Tuesday the 5th of 
November 1811, when the pursuer, without any warning 
or premonition, was apprehended in his fa thers  house at 
Muiihead, where he then resided, by Archibald Watson, a 
messenger at arms, by virtue of that very caption, at Mr 
Baillie’s instance, which had been discharged more than 
five months before. Mr Watson came in one of the 
Glasgow forenoon coaches, to the Inn at Westcraigs, 
which is about three miles distant from Muirhead, where 
the pursuer resides. He had a concurrent along with him, 
whom he employed to find out the pursuer’s residence. 
After this was done, he came to the pursuer’s father’s 
house, where the pursuer resided, whom he found at 
home ; and saying he had some business with him, he 
was desired to step into a room, which he did, along with 
his concurrent. The messenger then told the pursuer that 
lie came in the character of a King’s messenger, with a 
caption against him and his father, at the instance of Mr 
JBaillie of Falahill. The pursuer immediately explained 
how the matter stood, and showed the letter he had re­
ceived from the defender, Mr Fraser, acknowledging the 
receipt of L .2 0 , on account of Mr Baillie’s debt. The 
messenger, upon this, stated, that the defender had an ac­
count against the pursuer, or his father, for JL.)Q, and that 
if  this sum was not paid, or a bill granted for it by the 
pursuer, he must proceed to apprehend him. The pur­
suer declared he would submit to no such demand, upon 
which the messenger stated, that his orders were peremp­
tory, and that he myst proceed with the diligence. A t 
the same time he showed his blazon, and took his baton 
out of his pocket, with which he touched the breast of the 
pursuer, and said, “ You are my prisoner.” The concur­
rent then addressing the messenger, said, “ Nail them 
“  b o t h u p o n  which he also touched the pursuer’s fa­
ther upon the breast, and declared him likewise to be 
a prisoner. The pursuer’s mother happening to be pre­
sent, appeared so much affected at this proceeding, that



the messenger himself was moved, and said he would take 
the young man only, and let the lather stay at home.

4. The pursuer carries, periodically, the iron goods 
manufactured by the Shotts Jron Company, to their

. warehouse, or to their customers in Edinburgh; and it 
happened that, on the morning of the day on which he 
\vas apprehended, as above-mentioned, he had loaded his 
carts at the Shotts Ironworks, with which he was to pro­
ceed to Edinburgh, and to be there next morning by nine 
o’clock. On account of this circumstance, he remon­
strated against being carried to Edinburgh that night, and 
gave the messenger an assurance that he would meet him 
there next morning at nine o’clock. The messenger an­
swered he could give no such indulgence, and that the 
pursuer must immediately go to the Inn at YVestcraigs, 
and wait for the coach, 111 which he would be carried pri­
soner to Edinburgh. The pursuer then made another re­
quest, that the messenger, instead of carrying him three 
miles across the country, in the situation of a prisoner, 
and exhibiting him as such in a public-house, to wait per­
haps for some hours, till the coach arrived, would stay in 
the pursuer’s house till another of the Glasgow coaches, 
which came by the Shotts road, and which passed very 
near the place, and at the same hour, should arrive, with 
which they might all go to Edinburgh. Even this re­
quest was refused. The pursuer was carried across the 
country to Westcraigs, as a prisoner, and he was detained 
in the pubiic-house there for nearly tw'o hours, waiting for 
the coach.

5. When the coach arrived, the pursuer was mounted 
upon the top as a prisoner, in an extremely stormy and 
disagreeable night; and, upon his arrival at Edinburgh, 
he was carried, in the first place, to the defender’s house* 
i t  was then so late that the defender had gone to bed, 
and Mrs Fraser said he could not be seen that night. The 
messenger, however, was admitted up stairs, while the 
pursuer was left in the hands of his concurrent. Upon 
his return, the messenger said he was ordered not to put 
the pursuer into jail that night, but to take him .to some
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lodging-house, and keep him there till next day. The pur­
suer was carried to the infssengei!s ow?n house, where he 
was detained as a prisoner during the night,* and next 
morning he was carried back to the defender’s house. 
Having positively refused to comply with the defender’s 
demand, Mr Fraser seemed to think it imprudent to pro­
ceed farther, and he accordingly allowed the' pursuer to 
be liberated, upon his granting a letter obliging himself to 
appear before the defender on Friday the 8 th of Novem­
ber. This, as the pursuer understood, was in the nature 
of a letter of presentation.

6 . The damages sustained by the pursuer, from this un­
precedented abuse of legal diligence, have been very great. 
Shortly before he was apprehended, he had commenced 
business as a farmer, and had got a considerable part 
of his stork on credit; but the publicity with which he 
was appiehended and carried prisoner to Edinburgh, en­
tirely ruined his credit and respectability, in that part of 
the country where he resides. His business, too, was in­
terrupted for several days; and, upon the whole, he sub­
mits, that he makes a very reasonable claim when he de­
mands an award of L . 2 0 0  of damages against the de­
fender.

In respect thereof, fyc.
J, S. M ore*

A N SW ER S for F rancis  F raser .
»

»

1. T he defender has no access to know whether the 
pursuer paid the two first bills referred to in this article of 

• the condescendence. The third bill being payable eighteen 
months after 2 6 th September 1 8 0 7 , fell due on 2 9 th 
March 1809, and was protested on the 30th, as appears 
from the registered protest produced in process by the de­
fender, along with the bill itself. • The pursuer did not 
offer payment till 1 1 th April, when he required from Mr 
Baillie a discharge to his father of the debt due to the. 
bank, which was refused ; and in consequence of its hav-
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ing been  so* he applied to the defender to obtain that dis­
charge. T h e  defender, with strict regard to the interest 
o f  his em ployer, not only obtained it, but took, at the 
sam e tim e, an assignation to the bank-bond, in favour o f  
the pursuer, that he might rank on the sequestrated estate 
o f  his brother, the principal debtor, to the extent o f the 
three bills, and M r Bailiie paid L. 9 , 12s. 4d. o f  ex-  
pences. It has been explained lii the counter condescend­
ence for the defender, that the consignation o f  the L. 2 0  
becam e unnecessary, as the suspension was not brought 
into Court by the chaiger, and that sum was o f course 
placed to the credit o f  the pursuer, in account with the 
defender.

2 . In the second article o f  the condescendence, equally  
as in the first, it is insinuated most im propeily , that the 
refusal o f  M r B aillie to .produce a discharge o f  the bank 
debt was p ro p er; and that the defender unnecessarily oc­
casioned any procedure which took place. It has been  
said, that M r B aillie  was induced, by the circum stance o f  
his being on the eve o f  going abroad, “  to yield to the der 
“ fenders demand and it is added, that he granted to 
the pursuer an assignm ent to the debt, and to the dili­
gen ce proceeding on it, “  accepting from the defender 
“  L . 10, 7s. 8d. in full o f  the L . 2 0  bill, after deducting  
“  the expences o f  the suspension.”

* T h e  pursuer has all along endeavoured to confound  
tw o things distinct in them selves, viz. the bank debt due by 
his father and M r B aillie , as cautioners for his brother, 
and his own debt, due by bill, as a collateral security to M r  
B aillie  for his proportional relief from the father o f  the  
bank debt. T h e  defender was applied to, in his profes­
sional capacity, to demand from M r B aillie what he had 
prom ised to grant to the pursuer’s father, on retiring the 
bills granted by the pursuer, and which, as already stated, 
he ultim ately not only succeeded in obtaining, but he also  
obtained an assignation to the bank debt and diligence in  
the pursuer’s favour, that he might rank on his brother’s 
estate to the extent o f  the three bills, and at sam e tim e, he 
obtained possession o f  the last bill and diligence ; all
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w hich the defender retained, as he was entitled to do, as 
his ow n evidents, until reim bursed o f his advances ; and 
w h o, as stated in the counter condescendence, w ould also  
have been entitled  to use the d iligence issued on the b ill 
as unextinguished, in order to enforce repaym ent o f  the 
sum so advanced by him  to M r B a illie , in so  far as not 
extinguished  by the balance due to the pursuer, then in 
his hands.

3  & 4 . T h e  defender has stated in the counter con d e­
scen dence, that he did not em p lo y , or g ive instructions to  
M r W atson , in the character o f  a m essenger at arms ; 
and agreeably to the statem ent o f  M r W atson, the accu ­
racy o f  w hich  the defender has no reason to doubt, aud to 
the best o f  h is, the defender's, know ledge and b elief, M r  
W  aison did not act as a m essenger, nor apprehend the 
pursuer.

O n looking into the petition  and com p la in t, w hich  form s 
the libel in this action, and w'ith reference to  w hich the al­
legations in the condescendence m ust be considered, the  
statem ent o f  the condescendence w ill be found to differ 
from  it m aterially. In  the petition , the pursuer entirely  
suppressed any m ention o f  M r W atson having presented  
to  him  the accou n t'o f business, o f  w hich he had been re­
quested to obtain , if  p ossib le , a settlem en t, w hich form s a 
prom inent statem ent in the con d escen d en ce; and averred, 
that it was from  the defender h im self, after he, the pur­
suer, had been brought to E dinburgh, that he first learn­
ed that the a lleged  d iligence was used, not at the in ­
stance o f  M r B a iliie , but for the purpose o f  recovering ^ 
balance due to the defender. It w as there stated, that, 
Ci on the m orning o f  T u esd ay , he was carried to the per- 
“  sonal presence o f  M r Francis Fraser, and was not a lit- 
“  tie astonished to hear from M r Fraser h im self, that it 
“  was he w ho had em ployed  M r W atson to execu te the 
<l caption  in M r B a illie ’s nam e, and that the object of it 
“  was to obtain paym ent o f  a balance o f  account, said to 
“  be due to h im , M r Fraser.”

5. Every part of the statement embraced under this ar­
ticle of the condescendence, the defender knows and be­

l l
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lieves to be groundless or inaccurate ; and on com paring * 
the greater part o f  it with the statem ent made in the pe­
tition and com plaint, it will* be found to be inconsistent 
with it. It is now  only alleged, that the pursuer was de­
tained one night in the house o f  the m essenger, and that 
he was liberated the next day, on giving a letter to the 
defender personally, staling that he would appear on a fu­
ture day. In the petition and com plaint, it was stated, 
that the m essenger for som e tim e pretended that he had 
tio discretionary pow ers, and ultim ately “ said, that he 
u w ould accept o f  a letter o f  presentation for the peti- 
“ tioner’s appearing on the next day, Friday the 8th . T h e  
“  petitioner accordingly granted this letter; and, agreeable 
“ thereto, he not only waited till the 8th , but on that day, 

•“  he actually presented himself, that M i Fraser, if  he was 
"  disposed to do it, m ight again enforce the caption  
and it was further averred, that he was permitted “  to re- 
"  turn hom e, after having been detained, and for the m ost 
"  part in legal custody, for the space o f four days**

T h e  statem ent in the condescendence is thus w holly  
different from that given in the petition and com plaint, 
under w hich it is offered. T h e  real state o f  the fact has 
been given in the counter condescendence. '

6 . T h e  defender, o f course, denies that he is liable in  
dam ages, or that damages to uny extent were sustained  
through him , or in consequence o f  orders given by him . 
T h e  pursuer was, and is at this m om ent, justly  indebted  
to  him in the sum o f L . 19, 8s. Id ., being the balance o f  
account produced, with interest.

In respect whereof, &c.
* William  Bosw ell.

% • y
C O N D E S C E N D E N C E  for F rancis F raser.

T he petitioner having,‘by alterations irregularly made 
on the record copies of the condescendence and answers 
put in by him, varied still farther the statements original­
ly made by him, and introduced new matter, tending to
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create an appearance of intricacy in the present case ; 
the respondent considers it proper to submit the facts on 
which it must be decided, in connection, and more fully, 
in the form of an amended condescendence, to avoid the 
confusion which might occur, were he to meet the new 
statements of the pursuer, by altering or adding to the 
condescendence and answers on his part, already in pro­
cess.

1 . In 1801, John Manuel, the brother of the pursuer, 
entered into business as a spirit-dealer in Edinburgh, 
and obtained a cash credit, to the extent of L. 250, with 
the house of Sir William Forbes, James Hunter, and 
Company, his cautioners being Mr Baillie of Falahill, 
and James Manuel senior, his father. He became bank­
rupt in 1805, at which time a balance of L. 262, 15s. 4d. 
was due on this cash credit; for one-half of which, being 
L. 131, Ts. 5d. with interest from 31st January 1805, 
James Manuel Senior was liable. Besides this obliga­
tion to Sir William Forbes and Company, James Ma­
nuel senior was cautioner for his son John, in a credit 
with John Dunlop, spirit-merchant, to a considerable 
amount. And on the bankruptcy of his son, he con­
veyed, by a private transaction, his whole property to 
the pursuer, James Manuel junior, the complainer, ano­
ther of his sons, and became a pauper in his house.

Mr Baillie, the joint cautioner to Sir William Forbes 
and Company, in place of receiving from James Manuel 
senior bills for one half of the balance due on the cash 
credit with that house, as averred in the petition and 
complaint, amounting, with interest, to above L. 150, 
(Sept. 25, 1807,) agreed to receive from the petitioned 
James Manuel junior, the sum of L. 70 in three bills ; 
the first for L. 25, at six months date 5 the second for 
L. 25 ,«at twelve; and the third for L. 20 , payable eigh­
teen months after date j and he obliged himself, on these 
bills being retired, to grant to James Manuel senior a.‘ 
regular discharge of his proportion of the cautionary 
debt.



APPENDIX. 4 7 3

On retiring the third and last of these bills, the com- 
plainer required Mr Baillie to grant the stipulated dis­
charge ; and this having been refused, he applied to the 
defender, Mr Fraser, and, attended by him as a notary 
public, (April 11, 1809,) tendered under protest, to the 
agent of Mr Baillie, the contents of the bill, requiring 
a discharge of the debt due to the bank, agreeably to 
the previous obligation, and protested for damages, &c* 
if the requisition was not complied with.

2. Notwithstanding this procedure, Mr Baillie, (April 
2 2 , 1809,) through Mr William Jamieson, writer to the 
signet, his agent, raised letters of horning on the bill, 
and gave charges for payment of it to Janies Manuel 
senior and James Manuel junior. The latter waited on 
the defender with the respective charges, and instructed 
him to offer a bill of suspension. As the parties could 
not find caution, the bill of suspension prayed for “ sus- 
“  pension in the premises, upon consignation of the 
" sums charged for, to remain in manibus curia, until 
“  the charger shall implement his part of the aforesaid 
“ contract.” The sum of L . 2 0  was put into the hands 
of the respondent, to enable him to make the consigna­
tion ; but this was rendered unnecessary by an interlo­
cutor pronounced by Lord Balmuto ; who, on advising 
the bill, (June S, 1809,) with answers, replies, and pro­
ductions, refused the bill, but sisted execution “ until the 
6< charger shall grant to the suspender, James Manuel 

senior, a valid discharge of the obligationjie was under, 
** as a co-cautioner with the charger, for the cash-ac- 
“  count granted by Sir William Forbes and Company 
*c to his son John Manuel.”

In the face of this sist, Mr Baillie (Dec. 2 1 , 1809) 
raised letters of caption against both father and son, 
which made it necessary for them to offer a second bill 
of suspension, which also prayed “ for suspension upon 
“ consignation.” This bill was appointed to be answer­
ed (Dec. 2 2 , 1809) and execution sisted, and the sist in­
timated to the agent for Mr Baillie; but no further pro-
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cedure took place, Mr Baillie having pat the business 
into the hands of a different agent, bv the advice o f  
whom he granted, (May 2 8 , 1 8 1 1 ,) as a matter of 
course, the discharge in favour of James Manuel senior, 
and, at the same time, executed an assignation of the 
bond on which the cash credit proceeded, in favour of the 
petitioner, James Manuel junior, to the extent of L.70, 
that he might claim for relief against the estate of John 
Manuel his brother.

3. During the proceedings which have been mention­
ed, the defender was employed by the petitioner to sus­
pend a separate charge of horning, which had been given 
to his father, at the instance of John Dunlop, to whom 
it has been stated, that his father had become cautioner 
in a credit given to his son John Manuel. In security 
of the advances made on that credit, the father had con­
veyed to Dunlop a house and garden at Portobello, 
which he had sold, but without accounting for the pro­
ceeds, he gave a charge (August 1 0 , 1810) for L .223,as  
an alleged balance due to him. A bill of suspension 
was sisted, (Sept. 29, 1810,) but refused, on the ground 
that caution had not been found. A second bill, offer­
ed without caution, (Oct. 1 0 , lSlO ,)was refused on that 
ground. But a third bill, presented on juratory caution, 
was passed, and the letters expede ; James Manuel senior 
having previously deponed, that he 'possessed no property 
except the clothes which he then wore; and the charge 
was abandoned.

4. In these proceedings, the pursuer, James Manuel 
junior, was the sole employer of the defender, who had no 
correspondence with the father, and never saw him, ex­
cept on the occasion of his appearing to make oath. To  
James Manuel junior the defender rendered a state of his 
account, embracing both transactions, on 1 1 th Novem­
ber 1S09, and again on 2 2 d December thereafter. The 
pursuer, when urged for payment, referred to the L . 2 0  
put into the hands of the defender, and which it had not 
been necessary to consign ; and the defender, accord­
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ingly, brought that sum to the credit of the account. A  
duplicate of the account was tran>mitted to the pursuer 
of this date, (April 1 1 , 1 8 1 1 ,) b y  which, after giving 
the credit for that sum, a balance of L.5, 4 s. 5d. re­
mained due to the defender ; and, with reference to 
that balance, the pursuer, at an after period, alleged 
that he had transmitted the sum of L.5 by the hands of 
his brother, being the same sum which he more lately, 
and equally contrary to the fact, represented as “  paid 
“ by his father, as per receipt, to him/’

On 18th June 1811, after the discharge had been 
granted by Mr Baillie, a fourth and final account was 
rendered to the pursuer, by whom it has been produced 
in process ; in which, after adding to the balance of the 
account as rendered on 11th April preceding, the ex ­
pence of the discharge and assignment, and the sum of 
L . 1 0 , 7s. 8 d. paid by the defender to Mr Baillie, in full 
of the bill for L. 2 0 , (the difference betwixt that sum 
and the amount of the bill, with interest, having been 
allowed by Mr Baillie as the expences occasioned by 
the procedure which had been adopted on his part,) 
the sum due to the respondent amounted to L.19, 8 s. Id.

And it may be proper, in point of connection, to 
state, that the defender having more lately, and in 
autumn 1S16, raised an action before this Court, for 
payment of the balance of that account, the pursuer 
required that it should be taxed by the auditor of Court; 
who fixed the sum due at L. 2 0 , 7s. 8 d. including cor­
respondence, which has since been paid, with L.3, 1 0 s. 
8 d. of expences, thus placing the justice of it beyond 
question.

5 . In the course of autumn 1811, the defender men­
tioned the existence of this account to Mr Archibald 
Watson, whose wife conducts a tambouring business in 
Edinburgh, and who, on that account, had frequent oc­
casion to travel betwixt Glasgow and Edinburgh ; and 
requested that he wbuld, on the first occasion when he 
went to Glasgow, or had occasion to be in the neigh­
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bourhood of the pursuer’s residence, call upon him and 
endeavour to obtain payment, or a bill for the amount. 
With this view, he put into his hands the discharge to 
James Manuel senior, the assignation of the bond in fa­
vour of the pursuer, the bill, and diligence which had been 
raised on it by Mr Baillie, and the other vouchers of 
the account, to be delivered up on receiving payment, 
or a bill as proposed. These instructions were given 
in presence of one of the defender’s clerks. The defen­
der gave no instructions whatever to apprehend the 
pursuer, or in any other manner to concuss payment.

6 . Mr Watson had no opportunity, for sometime after,' 
of calling on the petitioner ; but on 5th November 1811/ 
being accidentally in the neighbourhood of the pur­
suer’s residence, in company with an acquaintance, he 
called upon him, and presented the account. The 
pursuer affected to state objections to various parts of it;  
but concluded by saying, that it was necessary for him 
to go to Edinburgh on separate business, and that if  
Mr Watson would wait for a short time, he would ac­
company him. This Mr Watson did.

7. When the pursuer and Mr Watson reached Edin­
burgh, in the evening of the same day, they endeavour­
ed to find out the house of a friend of the pursuer, who 
he stated lived in one of the new streets on the south 
side of the town, and where he meant to pass the night, 
but they were unsuccessful in their inquiries. They 
then endeavoured to get lodgings for him in the Lawn- 
market, but were equally unsuccessful; and Mr Watson 
latterly offered the pursuer a bed in his own house, 
which he readily accepted.

On the following morning, the pursuer called on the 
defender, not as a prisoner, but alone, and in all respects 
as a person at large; nor did he then insinuate that he 
either had been apprehended, or that he considered him­
self to have been so. Mr Watson had previously left 
the grounds of debt with the defender. The pursuer 
stated two objections to the account. H e alleged that 
he had not been credited with a sum of L. 5, which he
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stated  that h e had sent by h is brother John M anuel, but 
w hich  had n ot been  delivered to  the d efen d er; and he  
affected n ot to  understand in w hat m anner he could be 
deb ited  w ith the ex p en ce  o f  the two bills o f  suspension  
w hich  had been paid by M r B aillie. All th is h avin g  
been  exp la ined  to' h im , he at length  stated, that i f  his 
b rother, John M anuel, should say that the account was 
correct, he w ould pay it. O n this understanding he left 
th e house o f  the defender, to whom  he sent in the after­
n oon  an open note, say ing  that he had not found his 
b roth er at h om e, but w ould be in town on  the Friday  
fo llow in g  and settle the business. H e  disregarded that 
p rom ise, and did n ot again  c a l l ; and it was on ly  when  
threatened w ith  the action  for paym ent, w hich it was 
afterwards necessary to  bring, that he applied to the sam e  
W illia m  Jam ieson , w riter to  the sign et, w ho had acted  
as agent for M r B aillie  in the proceed ings against h im , 
w hich  had g iven  rise to  th e  exp en ces in d ispute, who 
trum ped up th e p etition  and com plaint now  under dis­
cussion .
“ 8 . T h e  facts above stated the defender is prepared to  
support by ev id en ce, and they are already in great part 
supported  by th e ev id en ce in process, and the varied  
and in con sisten t statem ents m ade by th e  pursuer. T h u s  
th e  new  statem ent, that h e  resided in th e house o f  his 
father, and n ot in h is ow n, is at variance w ith the ju d i­
c ia l statem ents m ade by him  in every stage o f  the p ro­
cedure. T h e  allegation , that h e was detained a prisoner  
in  E d inburgh  for four days, and the separate a llegation , 
that he was liberated on gran ting  a letter o f  presenta­
tio n , m ade by h im  jud icia lly  and so strongly , are ad­
m itted  to  be incorrect and groundless ; and the latter is 
further proved by the depositions in process to  have  
been  so . T h e  averm ent m ade in the petition  and com ­
p la in t, and in the subsequent p lead ings, that tlie pursuer 
w as cred itor, and n o t debtor to the defender, is refuted  
b y th e debt h aving been since paid w ith  expences, under 
a n  action  b rought to  recover paym ent. T h e  assertion, 
that h e was first inform ed by th e defender, w hen in
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Edinburgh, that he had been apprehended for the 
amount of his account, has been disproved by his more 
recent admission, that Mr Watson, when he called upon 
him in the country, laid the account before him.

On the whole, it is submitted, that the pursuer’s own 
statements, and the general aspect of the present case, 
affords a sufficient ground for dismissing the complaint, 
and subjecting him in full expences; but if the aver­
ments of parties shall go to proof, the defender can en­
tertain no doubt of the issue, and has only to regret the 
little prospect which he can entertain of ultimate indem­
nification from the opponent by whom he has been so 
improperly and calumniously brought into the field.

In respect t h e r e o f, fyc.
W il l ia m  B oswell.

%
A N SW E R S for J a m e s  M a n u e l  Junior.

••

Art. 1 .— I t  is totally denied that the pursuer was in  
debted to the defender in the sum of L. 19, Os. Id. men­
tioned in this article of the condescendence. The pur­
suer had no concern with the business against Dunlop, 
mentioned in this account. This was, as he understands, 
business done for his father, Jam6 s Manuel senior, and 
for his brother, John Manuel, merchant in Edinburgh. 
The pursuer never employed the defender till the 1st 
May 1S09, *hen he paid him 15s. for his trouble, and 
lodged in his hands L. 2 0 , to pay Raillie’s bill. The 
defender recovered all the expences incurred in the sus­
pension against Baillie. It was not till some time after­
wards that the defender rendered ah account anent that 
business ; and when he did render it, it appeared that all 
the expences incurred in the s^pension had been paid by 
Baillie *, and credit is accordingly given for them. But 
there was also the expence of a discharge and assigna­
tion of the debt, by Baillie, in favour of the pursuer, for 
which the defender charged in his account L. S, 19s. 7d. 
and part of which Baillie had abo paid. There remain­
ed only L. 2, 5s. 3d. of that expence due to the defen­
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der, which the pursuer was all along willing to pay, 
upon a separate account thereof being rendered to him, 
and which he has accordingly since paid, and produced 
the defender’s receipt theretor. The pursuer never had 
any other business with the defender.

Art. 2.— The whole of this article is denied. On the 
1st of May 1809, when the pursuer, fo r  the f r s t  lime, 
employed the defender, he put the L. 2 0  already men­
tioned into his hands. The defender could not legally 
impute that money to any account due to him by the 
pursuer’s father or brother. It was given to him for the 
express purpose o f paying the pursuer's bill to Batllie ; 
and at this time no expences had been, or indeed could 
have been, incurred on the pursuer’s account.

Art. 3.—This article of the defender’s condescendence 
consists of an absurd and laboured argument to justify 
conduct which truly admits of no excuse. The defen­
der has admitted, and cannot deny, that Bailliepaid the 
expences incurred by the pursuer in the suspension ; and, 
consequently, this expence could not be charged against 
the pursuer. The defender does not deny that he got 
the money from the pursuer, for the purpose above- 
mentioned, and he was clearly bound to have applied 
it to this purpose; and if any expence had been incurred 
which was not recovered from Baillie, it was time 
enough to have demanded payment of this from the pur­
suer, after Baillie had refused to pay it. But no such 
expence was incurred, the whole of the defender’s ac­
counts having been confessedly paid by Baillie, with the 
exception of a part o f the expence of the discharge and 
assignation, to the amount of L. 2 , 5s. 3d., as before- 
mentioned, which the pursuer has since paid.

Art. 4.— The whole of this article is a gross misre­
presentation of the fact. The defender, it will be observ.. 
ed, does not deny that he gave the caption to Watson, the 
messenger s and it is impossible that Watson could have 
got this diligence, except for some improper purpose. 
H e was both employed and acted as a messenger, in the
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strictest sense of the word ; for he apprehended the pur­
suer, and brought him in custody to Edinburgh.

Art. 5 .—The statement given in this article is both 
false and incredible. Watson, the messenger ? came to 
Westcraigs inn on the forenoon of the day on which the 
pursuer was apprehended. He did not appear to have 
any other business in that quarter, except to apprehend 
the pursuer; and none other has yet been specified. 
Watson was very overbearing, and said his orders were 
so peremptory, that if he did not bring the pursuer to 
Edinburgh as a prisoner, he must bring payment of the 
debt, or be himself answerable for it. The pursuer is in 
the practice of carrying goods from the Shotts Iron­
works to Edinburgh. His two carts were then standing 
on the road, loaded with goods for Edinburgh; and he 
insisted very much with Mr Watssn for the indulgence 
of being allowed to go with these carts to Edinburgh. 
This, however, was refused, and the pursuer was obliged 
to go with Watson as a prisoner. The carts had, of 
course, to be unloaded, to the great loss and disappoint­
ment of the pursuer and his employers. When the 
pursuer came to Edinburgh, had he not been under re­
straint, and in fact detained as a prisoner by Watson, he 
could have gone either to the house in which he usually 
lodged, or to an uncle’s house, who resided then in 
the neighbourhood of Edinburgh. But this was not 
permitted to him ; he was kept a prisoner in Watson’s 
house; and even though Watson had found lodgings 
for him in the Lawnmarket, which he made an unsuc­
cessful attempt to do, still the pursuer was to have been 
kept there as a prisoner. On any other supposition 
there could have been no reason for Watson attempting 
to find lodgings for the pursuer, as he could have found 
them f o r  himself.

When Watson, on the morning of the following day, 
carried the pursuer to the defender’s house, he did not 
leave him there ; for the defender sent both the pursuer 
and Watson to find John Manuel, the pursuer’s brother̂
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in order to bring him to the defender’s house, and to get 
his, John Manuel’s accounts settled. But he, John 
Manuel, could not be found. The pursuer was then 
brought back by Watson to the defender’s house, when 
the defender told Watson to take a letter from the pur­
suer, obliging himself to appear in Edinburgh against a 
certain day. Watson, after taking a line from the pur­
suer to this effect, set him at liberty.— The story about 
the L. 5 is this The pursuer told the defender that his 
father had sent L. 5 to John Manuel, to assist in paying 
the account due by. them., that is, by John Manuel and 
his father, to the defender, which sum, it would appear, 
had been kept up by John Manuel; but the pursuer 
told the defender he had nothing to do either with that 
account or with the payment.

Art. 6 .— The pursuer certainly granted the letter be­
fore-mentioned on the day after he was brought to 
Edinburgh, which he thinks was a Wednesday. The 
letter stated, that he was to appear in the defender’s 
office again, in two days after, at a certain hour; at 
least this is the pursuer’s impression as to the terms of 
the letter. The pursuer waited in Edinburgh for two 
days, and went to the defender’s office at the appointed 
hour, taking his brother, John Manuel, with him ; but 
neither the defender himself nor Mr Watson were there, 
and the pursuer therefore came off and went home.

Art. 7 .— The practice here mentioned is not only 
quite unknown, but it is absolutely ridiculous. Was it 
indeed ever heard of, that when an agent pays a debt 
for his client, with money put into his hands by the 
client /or that very purpose, that he should be entitled to 
use the retired diligence against his own client, in the 
name of the original creditor, for the purpose of recover­
ing payment of some other alleged claim ? The defender 
made no advances in the suspension for the pursuer, as 
he recovered his expences from Baillie, as before stated * 
but though he had made advances for him, he was not 
entitled to take so illegal a method of compelling pay­
ment.
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Art. 8 .— The defender can state no defence in law, 
nor any objection to the relevancy of the complaint. In­
deed, the remit to the Lord Ordinary, by the Court, is 
a virtual finding that the complaint is competent, as to 
which, indeed, there can be no room for doubt.

The pursuer cannot help observing, that as the defen­
der does not deny that he got the L. 2 0  for the purpose 
already mentioned, and further, as he does not deny that 
he put the caption into the hands o f Watson, but, on the 
contrary, admits both these facts, enough is admitted to 
authorize your Lordships, without any further proce­
dure, to find damages due; and he humbly trusts your. 
Lordships will pronounce an interlocutor to this effect. 
In truth, the pursuer has been so much injured in his 
credit and circumstances by the oppressive nature of the 
defender’s proceedings, that he is unable to bear the ex­
pence of a protracted litigation. And he is not without 
hope that the mutual condescendences have.been order- 

• ed to be answered, with the view of enabling your Lord- 
ships at once to decide the cause, and to award such 
sum, in name of damages, as shall seem to be adequate 
to the injury sustained. At all events, it is hoped, that 
an interlocutor finding damages due will be pronounced,

• so that any future investigation may be limited merely 
to the quantum of damages, without obliging the parties 
again to travel over the same ground they have already 
gone.

In respect whereof, fyc,
J. S. M ore.
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ISSU E S.

I n obedience to a remit from Lord Reston, Ordi­
nary, dated 23d May 1817, I report that the following 
Issues are calculated to try the question between the par* 
ties:

W hether, on or about the 5th day of November 1811, 
the pursuer was apprehended, taken into custody, and
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carried as a prisoner to Edinburgh, to the injury and 
damage of the said pursuer, by Archibald Watson, 
a messenger, by directions from the defender, and in 
virtue of the caption produced in process, raised at 
the instance of James Baillie of Falahill, against the 
pursuer ?

Whether the pursuer was detained in custody of said 
messenger, acting under the authority aforesaid, for 
some time after he was brought to Edinburgh, and un­
til the pursuer granted a letter, promising or binding 
himself to appear before the said defender, upon the 
8th of November 1811, or about that time, to the in­
jury and damage of said pursuer ?

(Signed) W illiam Clerk,
First Clerk of the Jury Court.
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